
 
 
 

 

 

PERMIT REPORT 

To: Board of Managers 

From:  Cole Thompson, Permitting Technician 

Date: August 9, 2018 

Re: Permit 18-362: 15500 Minnetonka Boulevard, Minnetonka 

 

 

Recommendation:  

Approval of MCWD permit application on the following conditions: 

1. Resubmittal of a wetland buffer monument plan 

2. Submission for MCWD approval of a draft declaration for the maintenance and 

monitoring of wetland buffers 

3. Submission of a 5-year maintenance and monitoring plan for the proposed buffer 

restoration 

4. Submission of financial assurance for Wetland Protection ($5,000) 

 

Summary: 

 

Steven Arundel (Applicant) has applied for a Minnehaha Creek Watershed District Permit for a 

3-lot subdivision of an 11.5-acre property in Minnetonka. The project triggers MCWD’s Wetland 

Protection rule, and meets the buffer requirements of the rule on two of the three lots; a shortfall 

from buffer width on the third lot is the subject of a variance request. The Board of Managers is 

asked to consider the variance request.   

 

Background:  

 

The Applicant is proposing a 3-lot subdivision on the property located at 15500 Minnetonka 

Boulevard in the City of Minnetonka.  A single family home is currently located on the property 

and will remain as one of the three lots. A Type 3 Shallow Marsh wetland has been delineated on 

the property and approved under a Notice of Decision issued by the City of Minnetonka on July 

19, 2017. The City is the Local Government Unit for the Wetland Conservation Act. A wetland 

buffer is not currently declared to the property. The subdivision triggers the District’s Erosion 

Control, Stormwater Management, and Wetland Protection rules. The City of Minnetonka 

exercises sole regulatory authority for Erosion Control and Stormwater Management. The 

District implements the Wetland Protection rule within the City of Minnetonka which includes 

buffer requirements. The District’s Wetland Protection rule is applied to the proposed 

subdivision because the work triggers the Stormwater Management Rule. The wetland rule 



 
 
 

 

requires that a wetland buffer must be provided for the wetland on each property downgradient 

of disturbance. The rule analysis summarizes the application of the Wetland Protection rule and 

the variance request from the applicant.  

 

District Rule Analysis:  

 

Wetland Protection Rule 

The proposed 3-lot subdivision triggers the District’s Stormwater Management rule even though 

the City of Minnetonka in fact exercises regulatory authority for stormwater management. The 

Stormwater Management Rule is triggered by the subdivision into three or more lots of a 

property one acre or large; under 5(a) of the Wetland Protection Rule, work triggering the 

Stormwater Rule must comply with the buffer provisions of the Wetland Protection Rule. The 

buffer provision of the Wetland Protection Rule is triggered whenever the Stormwater 

Management Rule is applied to a project and buffers must be provided downgradient of 

disturbance. No disturbance – draining, filling or excavation of the wetland on the property – is 

proposed. The wetland on site is a Preserve wetland according to the District’s Functional 

Assessment of Wetlands. According to Section 6 of the Wetland Protection rule, the base buffer 

width to be applied to the subdivision is 75 feet and not to be reduced less than a minimum 

buffer width of 67 feet. The Applicant has demonstrated that the average buffer slope is 5-

percent. Per Section 6(b)(1) of the rule, the Base Buffer Width may be reduced 2 feet for every 

five percent decrease from 20%, therefore the Buffer may be reduced by 6 feet. Additionally, the 

Applicant has demonstrated that the predominant buffer soil condition is classified as Hydrologic 

Soil Group A. Per Section 6(b)(2), the Base Buffer Width may be reduced 2 feet for every grade 

above Type D, therefore the Buffer may be reduced by an additional 6 feet. Since the total 

reduction would result in an Applied Buffer Width of 63’, the Minimum Applied Buffer Width 

of 67 feet is applied.  

 

The Applicant is utilizing Buffer Averaging per section 6(c) to meet the District’s buffer 

requirements for lots 2 and 3 of the subdivision. The required buffer width has been 

demonstrated on lots 2 and 3 of the subdivision and meets the District’s wetland protection rule.   

 

Variance 

The Applicant is requesting a Variance to the required buffer width for Lot 1. As the driveway 

and home were built in 2007 before MCWD enforced wetland buffers to single family homes, 

The Applicant proposes to provide a buffer an averaged buffer width of 25’ which does not meet 

the minimum buffer width or buffer averaging requirements for the subdivision. The provided 

buffer would present a 10,250 square foot shortfall in buffer area. The District’s Variance and 

Exception Rule states that the Managers may grant a variance from a provision of the rules if the 

applicant demonstrates the following:  

 



 
 
 

 

 Because of special conditions inherent to the property that do not apply generally 

to other land or structures in the District, strict compliance with a provision of the 

a District rule will cause undue hardship to the applicant; 

 The hardship was not created by the applicant, its owner or representative, or a 

contractor.  Economic hardship is not grounds for issuing a variance;  

 Granting the variance will not serve merely as a convenience to the applicant; 

 There is no feasible and prudent alternative to the proposed activity requiring the 

variance; and 

 Granting the variance will not impair or be contrary to the intent of the rules. 

 

The District allows for Buffer Averaging to meet the required total area of buffer width if the 

minimum width (at least 50% of the base buffer width) is maintained; buffer exceeding 200% of 

the base buffer width does not accrue toward compliance with the total-area requirement. The 

Applicant has requested a variance from the minimum buffer width requirement to allow the 

existing home to remain while providing a buffer with an averaged width of 25’. The minimum 

width for this project is 33.5’. The minimum width proposed is 20’ therefore there would be a 

13.5’ shortfall of buffer width adjacent to the existing driveway on lot 1. As the rule is written 

the subdivision is required to provide 46,400 square feet of buffer. As proposed the subdivision 

would provide 36,150 square feet.  

 

The proximity of the home on lot 1 to the wetland is a special condition inherent to the property. 

The District has no record of permitting for the construction of the home in 2007. At the time of 

construction the District did not apply wetland buffers to single family homes. Strict compliance 

with the rule would require relocation of the existing home and driveway.  

 

Staff concurs in the factual statements and technical justifications stated above and in the 

variance application. Accordingly, staff finds there is an adequate technical basis and 

justification to grant the requested variance. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

Steven Arundel has applied for an MCWD permit for Wetland Protection and applied for a 

variance from the minimum buffer width requirement of the Wetland Protection rule for Lot 1. 

Lot 1 as proposed would reduce the applied minimum buffer width from 33.5’ to an averaged 

width of 25’. Lot 2 and lot 3 as proposed meet the requirements of the rule. The permit 

application is currently incomplete. If the Board of Managers grants the variance, staff 

recommends delegation of final permitting authority to staff to allow staff to issue the permit.  

 

Attachments: 

 

1. Application Form 

2. Variance Request 



 
 
 

 

3. Site Plan 

4. Wetland Delineation diagram 














